
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY
COTINCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'AI,ENE, IDAHO.

HELD AT THE I-IBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM

July 21,2025

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene met in a continued session of said Council
at the Coeur d'Alene City Library Communitl,. Room on July 21. 2025. at l2:00 noon, there being
present the lollowing members:

Woody McEvers. Mayor

Kenny Gabriel
Christie Wood
Dan Gookin
Dan English
Amv Evans
Kiki Miller

) Members of Council Present

FISCAL YEAR 25-26 BUDGET: Citir Finance Direcror Katie Ebner noted that she is providing
the budget outline including current revenue and expenditure projections for the General Fund,
identily areas of concem, and discuss potential options fbr aligning the budget moving lbrw-ard.
She noted that she is seeking input liom Council to be able to complete a budget that will be
supported by Council. while *.orking toward reducing deficit spending. Ilighlights of her
presentation included a review of the general fund changes from last year to this year's proposed
budget. noting a request for 4% in property tax revenue (3% allo*.ed by state and l% lrom
foregone) lbr a total general tund budget request of $59.004.637.00. She noted thar interest
earnings have been good; however. not something that can be assured olin the future. Ms. Ebner
provided an explanation ofthe levy rate and its effect on the possible new growth amounts. She
revier.r'ed the interfund transfers noting it would be $393,928 less for Fiscal Year 2026 as no
transf'er of impact t'ees will be budgeted at this time, as qualifl,ing projects are plamed. Regarding
General Fund expenditures. Ms. Ebner noted they are proposed to be less due to the completion of
the Police Department expansion capital project. which reduced the budget substantially. Ms.
Ebner noted that the largest growing category is wages/benefits. The proposed budget includes the
requested addition of one building department Permit Technician to assist in meeting the

)

)

)
)
)

DEPARTMENT HEADS PRESENT: Troy Tymesen" City Administraror; Renata Mcleod.
Municipal Services Director/citl Clerk; Katie Ebner, Finance Director/ city Treasurer; Ted
Lantzy, Building official: Thomas Greif, Fire chief: Melissa Tosi, Human Resource Director;
Elizabeth Westenburg, Library Director: Bill Greenwood, Parks & Recreation Director: Lee White.
Police Chief: Todd Feusier. Streets & Engineering Director; Randy Adams, City Attomel,; Mike
Anderson. Wastewater Superintendent; and Kyte Marine. \lhter Superintendent.

CALL To oRDER: Mayor McEvers called the meeting to order and noted that the purpose of
the meeting u,'as to present the preliminary budget for fiscal year 2025-2026 and to give the council
an opportunity to ask questions.



requirements imposed b1 l.C. 39-41 l8 and three custodial staffinstead olcontracted services. Ms.
Ebnc'r revier,'ed the propert) tax scenarios based on l7o versus 470. demonstrating a difference
bctueen residential and commercial properties. She reviewed the challenges to citl' finances.
noting that groun is not generating substantial new revenue. rather the levy rate dictates that only
S185.000 is expected from new gro$'th revenue next year. Additionally. recent legislation limits
the revenue from urban renewal areas to only 80%. Even with the maximum alloll.able property
taxes, the City is projected to be at a budget deficit. She provided a review olgrowth versus growth
revenue lbr the past l0 years. demonstrating the substantial downward trend. Ms. Ebner
recommended that Council approve the 49/o properly tax increase. keep wages conservative, and
evaluate strategic positions to capture savings \,\'ithout impacting core services. She explained that
ongoing erpenditures versus revenues require $2,503.638 to be deducted fiom the General Fund
balance. also noting that emplo)ee contract negotiations har.e not been flnalized.

Ms. Ebner explained the Citl's urban reneual areas and their impact on propenl tax rerenue. She
explained the closure process/timing and the impact it u'ould have on the budget. specifically
related to the Health Corridor District. which would result in257.623 in ongoing revenues as u'ell
as a one-time payout of $3 10.560.00.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Wood requested the ongoing f'ees and penalties fiom the County
to be added at $75,000.00 a year. Ms. Ebner noted that she tries to budget consen'atively lor some
of the smaller accounts and fbcuses on the larger accounts. Councilmember Wood clarified that
they are seeking all revenue sources to avoid unnecessary cuts. Councilmember Wood asked about
intertund transltr and a potential easement t-ee to the utilities fbr general lund properS' use and
asked tbr Council to have a future discussion on that topic. Councilmemher Cookin asked for
clariflcation regarding the health insurance costs. Ms. Tosi esplained the dillerence in coverages
and opting out of the cit-v's plan and VEBA expenses. Councilmember Wood asked fbr clarification
regarding the Fire Department constant manning. u ith Chief Grief explaining the minimum
stalling is based on a negotiated agreement. Ilsomeone calls in sick or injured. they are required
to call someone in and noted that the)'have three current vacancies. The manning model is based
on a salbty standard of three per truck and ambulances with a minimum of two, and overtime is
paid ii someone is called in to meet those levels. Councilmember Gookin expressed concem
regarding the amount of ove(ime needed to meet the manning requirements and asked w-hen it
rvould be the right time to hire more staft-. ChielGrief noted it would depend on the number ol
injuries and sick leal'e. so it is a gamble. He does hale predictable upcoming retirements and

'"rould look to bring people in earll to get them to the academ). as it is approximatelv,l months
betbre thel complete the necessalr' lraining to hit the ground running. Councilmember Gookin
*ould like to get off the clcle ol seeking G.O. Bonds and r.vould like a line item to phase in the
purchases. Chief Griel noted that thel' have looked at phasing in the purchases and thel r.r'ould
have to allocate approximately $900.00C) a iear to pay for a tire engine ladder. He lblt it uould be
a challenge to put that kind ol money in the budget w'hile the Citf is looking to reduce the budget
already. Councilmember Gabriel clarifled that the increase in overlay istojust maintain the roads.
nol tlx the detlciencies. He asked about upcoming Building Inspector retirements, with Building
Olllcial Ted Lantzy- noting that it will take se'"eral months to train an inspector. depending upon
their experience and it has been a really hard position to t'ill. Councilmember Wood noted that
she sent out an email ri'ith a lot of questions and asked each department to provide options for
cutting l7o oltheir budgets as a \!av tbr the Council to have a good conr,ersation regarding the

)PageCouncil N{inutes Jul1 2l.2025



budget. Ms. Ebner stated that she is collecting that intbrmation from departments and *ill send
the response to the Council. Councilmember Gookin suggested asking other cities what they are
going to be asking for as f'ar as percentage of property tax requests to demonstrate to the public
thal we are in concert u'ith our peers. He also asked about oflbring a retirement incentive. *.ith
Mr. T1'mesen noting that there has been no projected cost savings uhen thel look at that option.
Mr. Tl mesen noted that in two u-eeks. Ms. Ebner u'ill present the highwater mark resolution. noting
that new growth numbers have not been provided yet, and the City is still looking at medical. He
noted that departments work hard to be eftlcient and bring in reasonable budget requests. He noted
that three quarters of the General Fund consists of expenses related to employees and the Citl
needs to finalize emplol'ee contract negotiations. The Council requested another uorkshop prior
to the final budget public hearing.

MOTION: Motion by Gookin. seconded by Gabriel. that there being no other business. this
meeting be adjoumed. Motion carried.

The meeting adjoumed at I :35 p.m.

Wbody ers. May'or

ATTEST:

ta McI-eodc

Ci CIerk

Council Minutes Jull' 2l . 2025 Page 3


